
Idaho Public Charter School Commission          Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 1 
514 W. Jefferson St * Suite 303 * Boise, ID 83720 
208-332-1561 • pcsc@osbe.idaho.gov

IDAHO PUBLIC CHARTER SCHOOL COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Date:  Thursday, December 14, 2023 
Start Time:  9:00 A.M., MST  

Physical Location:  Idaho State Capitol, Senate Education Committee Room (WW55) 
    700 W. Jefferson Street, Boise, ID 83720 

Remote/Public Access via YouTube Livestream: 
https://www.youtube.com/@IPCSC 

I. COMMISSION WORK (Action Items)
A. Agenda - Review / Approval
B. Minutes - Review / Approval

i. Special meeting – November 27, 2023
C. 2024 Commission Regular Meeting Dates - Review/Approval

II. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

III. IPCSC EXECUTIVE AGENCY LEGISLATION (Action Item)
A. Public Comment

IV. CONSIDERATION OF RENEWAL CONDITIONS (Action Item)
A. iSucceed Virtual High School

V. CONSIDERATION OF CHARTER AMENDMENT (Action Item)
A. North Star Charter School

VI. CONSIDERATION OF NEW CHARTER SCHOOL PETITION (Action Item)
A. North Idaho Classical Academy

VII. NEW DIRECTOR TRANSITION CONSIDERATION

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT
Public comment will be limited to three minutes per person. Please see IPCSC policy for more
information. 

https://www.youtube.com/@IPCSC


MEETING MINUTES FOR SPECIAL MEETING 

Date:  Monday, November 27, 2023 
Start Time:  1:00 P.M., MST  
Physical Location:  IPCSC Office, 514 W. Jefferson St, Suite 324, Boise, ID 83720 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Reed at 1:00 p.m. 

Commissioners Present: Staff Present: 
Chairman Reed Director Adams, IPCSC 
Vice Chair Bair Kristy Bobish-Thompson, DHR 
Commissioner Koehler Tim Davis, Attorney General’s Office 
Commissioner Hedrick Jacob Smith, IPCSC 
Commissioner Quinn 
Commissioner Fisher 
Commissioner Amador 

I. AGENDA APPROVAL (Action Item)

Motion/Second (Hedrick/Koehler) Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 
The motion passed unanimously. 

II. MEETING MINUTES APPROVAL (Action Item)
a. Minutes from October 12, 2023
b. Minutes from November 9, 2023

Motion/Second (Quinn/Bair) Motion to approve the minutes from October 12, 2023 and 
November 9, 2023 as presented. 
The motion passed unanimously 

III. EXECUTIVE SESSION (Action Item)
The Commission will enter into executive session pursuant to IC 74-206(1)(a) to consider hiring a public
officer, employee, staff member or individual agent, wherein the respective qualities of individuals are to
be evaluated in order to fill a particular vacancy or need.

Motion/Second (Hedrick/Koehler) Motion to move into executive session pursuant to Idaho 
Code 74-206(1)(a) to consider personnel matters. 

Page 1



Roll call vote for executive session: 

Chairman Reed Aye 
Vice Chair Bair Aye 
Commissioner Koehler Aye 
Commissioner Hedrick Aye 
Commissioner Quinn Aye 
Commissioner Fisher Aye 
Commissioner Amador Aye 

The motion passed unanimously.  
Commission entered executive session at 1:04 p.m. 
Commission exited executive session at 1:33 p.m. 

IV. INTERVIEW SELECTION (Action Item)

Motion/Second (Hedrick/Koehler) Motion to invite for interview the selected top three
candidates who have submitted an application for the director position.
The motion passed unanimously

V. ADJOURN MEETING (Action Item)

Motion/Second (Fisher/Bair) Motion to adjourn meeting at 1:36pm.
The motion passed unanimously

Page 2



Possible dates for IPCSC Regular Meetings:   (2nd Thursday, every other month, except August) 

February 8 & 9 
April 11 
June 13 
August 15 
October 10 
December 12 

Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



IV. RENEWAL CONDITIONS - iSucceed Virtual High School

BACKGROUND 
In 2022, iSVHS was conditionally renewed with a 5-year operating contract. Conditions 
were established with the school with deadlines. Should the school meet all conditions 
by the established deadlines, it may continue operating until its next renewal cycle. 
However, failure to meet any condition by the established deadline requires that the 
authorizer, at its next public meeting, consider whether mid-term revocation of the 
school’s charter is 
warranted.  

The following condition has been determined to be “Unmet”: 

Due 10/31/23:  
CONDITION UNMET:  
iSucceed’s alternative program will meet standard on the IPCSC’s Progress Toward 
Graduation measure at the end of the 2022-23 school year.  This condition will be 
evaluated by October 31, 2023.  The evaluation will be consistent with the formula for 
this measure as it is defined in the Commission’s Performance Framework incorporated 
into iSucceed’s active Performance Certificate as of October 31, 2023.  The measures 
will be based on instructional days rather than calendar days. 

Please reference the FY23 Annual Performance Report attached. 

DISCUSSION 
Pursuant to Idaho Code section 33-5209C (7), if a school’s charter is renewed with 
conditions and the school subsequently fails to meet any one of those conditions by the 
specified dates, the school’s charter may be revoked by the Commission. 

The IPCSC may consider whether to begin revocation proceedings at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting.  

SPEAKER(s) 
IPCSC Program Manager, Jared Dawson 
iSucceed Administration 

COMMISSION ACTION 

1. A motion to take no action on the unmet renewal condition and allow the school to
continue operations; OR

2. A motion to initiate a revocation hearing based on the school’s unmet renewal
condition at the February 2023 IPCSC meeting.

Page 29



Annual Performance Report 2023 

iSUCCEED VIRTUAL HIGH SCHOOL  

iSUCCEED ACADEMY- ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM 

Mission Statement: To engage and motivate all students in a quality personalized education that 

promotes individual success and lifelong learning. 

School Information Annual Report FY2022-2023 Current: FY 2023-2024 

Board Chair/President Don Pena Petra Jauregui 

Treasurer Tarina McDonald 

Secretary Amanda Leader Lisa McIntosh 

Executive Director Kathleen Allison Kathleen Allison 

Administrator Kathleen Allison Kathleen Allison 

Business Manager Laura Baker Laura Baker 

School Location/Phone 6148 N Discovery Way, Ste.120, Boise, ID 83713 208-375-31116

Page 30



Table of Contents
Introduction .................................................................................................................................................................  

Renewal Conditions…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

School Overview ..........................................................................................................................................................  

Annual Snapshot  ........................................................................................................................................................  

Academic Outcomes ...................................................................................................................................................  

Math Proficiency ..............................................................................................................................................  

ELA Proficiency  ...............................................................................................................................................  

College & Career Readiness (4Yr ACGR) ........................................................................................................  

Historical Performance  ...................................................................................................................................  

Academic Outcomes: Virtual Alternative Program .............................................................................................  

Math & ELA Proficiency ……………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Math & ELA Content Mastery ........................................................................................................................  

9-12 Progress Towards Graduation .................................................................................................................  

College & Career Readiness (5Yr ACGR) ........................................................................................................  

College & Career Readiness (Addt’l Graduates) .............................................................................................  

Historical Performance  ...................................................................................................................................  

Operational Outcomes:  Board Stewardship ........................................................................................................  

Governance Structure ......................................................................................................................................  

Governance Oversight ......................................................................................................................................  

Governance Compliance ...................................................................................................................................  

Operational Outcomes:  Management ....................................................................................................................  

Student Services ...............................................................................................................................................  

Data Security and Information Technology ....................................................................................................  

Facility & Services ...........................................................................................................................................  

Operational Compliance...................................................................................................................................  

Historical Performance  ...................................................................................................................................  

Financial Outcomes ....................................................................................................................................................  

Near Term Measures .......................................................................................................................................  

Sustainability Measures ..................................................................................................................................  

Historical Performance  ...................................................................................................................................  

Contact Us .....................................................................................................................................................................  

Page 31



Introduction 

COMPLIANCE/AUTHORITY: 

Charter schools in Idaho operate on 5-year terms as defined in a Performance Certificate 

executed between the school’s board and its authorizer.  In addition, I.C. §33-5209A and 

I.C. §33-5209C require that every certificate include a framework describing the

expectations the school must meet in order to earn a next operational term.  It also requires 

that charter school authorizer’s complete performance reports for the schools they oversee 

each year.  The annual performance report serves the following purposes:   

1. To provide transparent information about charter school quality to the public;

2. To ensure charter school boards have access to clear expectations and;

3. To inform mid-term authorizing decisions.

RENEWAL (I.C. §33-5209B) 

At the end of each 5-year operating term, each school’s performance certificate is considered for 

renewal. As this school’s operating contract expires on June 30th, 2027, this report directly impacts 

the school’s renewal recommendation. The authorizer is required to consider the following when 

making renewal decisions: all annual performance reports issued during the current performance 

certificate term, the school’s current financial status, and any application materials submitted by the 

school. Renewal decisions must be made prior to March 15th, 2027. Please see the Renewal Guidance 

document for more information on the renewal process.  

• PERFORMANCE REPORT APPLICATION:

o Each measure included in the IPCSC’s framework has a meets standard benchmark.

If this school meets standard on all measures of the framework as reflected in the

most recent years Annual Performance Report the school is guaranteed an

unconditional renewal. If the school does not meet standard on one or more measures

of the school’s operating contract, it may be conditionally renewed or non-renewed.

**Outcomes on this report inform high-stakes decisions, schools are encouraged to use this 

information to support their strategic planning efforts each year. **  

_____________________________________________________________________________________

IPCSC RESOURCES 

IPCSC Performance Framework 

IPCSC Renewal Guidance  

IPCSC Schools  

SCHOOL RESOURCES 

iSVHS Performance Certificate 

iSVHS Annual Report Page 

Current Certificate Term: 2022-2027

Page 32

https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title33/T33CH52/SECT33-5209A/#:~:text=33-5209A.%20accountability.,%281%29%20Performance%20framework.
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title33/T33CH52/SECT33-5209C/#:~:text=33-5209C.%20enforcement%20%E2%80%94%20revocation%20%E2%80%94%20appeal.%20%281%29%20An,support%20ongoing%20evaluation%20according%20to%20the%20performance%20certificate.
https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/guidance-performance-certificate-renewal-process/
https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/performance-framework/
https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/pcsc-policies/section-viii-renewal-non-renewal-and-revocation/
https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/pcsc-schools/
https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/isucceed-virtual-high-school-performance-certificate-2017-2022/
https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/schools/isucceed-virtual-high-school/


 IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT iSucceed Virtual High School Page 4 of 33 

iSVHS Renewal 

RENEWAL CONDITIONS 

In 2022, iSVHS was conditionally renewed with a 5-year operating contract. Each of the 

following (3) conditions must be met by the deadline established below. Should the school 

meet all conditions by the established deadlines, it may continue operating until its next 

renewal cycle. However, failure to meet any condition by the established deadline requires 

that the authorizer, at its next public meeting, consider whether mid-term revocation of the 

school’s charter is warranted. Below are the conditions that iSVHS has been authorized to 

operate under: 

• Condition 1:

Due 10/31/23: CONDITION UNMET: ISUCCEED's alternative program will meet standard

on the IPCSC’s Progress Toward Graduation measure at the end of the 2022-23 school year.

This condition will be evaluated by October 31, 2023.  The evaluation will be consistent with

the formula for this measure as it is defined in the Commission’s Performance Framework

incorporated into ISUCCEED's active Performance Certificate as of October 31, 2023.  The

measures will be based on instructional days rather than calendar days.

• Condition 2:

Due 6/30/24: The percentage of continuously enrolled students in grades 10-12 who are

enrolled in ISUCCEED’s alternative program, referred to as iSucceed Academy, and who

successfully complete 2 credits of math must be 5% greater by June 30, 2023 than the

school’s 2021 rate, and must either meet standard as it is defined in the Commission’s

Performance Framework or be 10% greater than the school’s 2021 rate by June 30, 2024.

• Condition 3: CONDITION MET

ISUCCEED’s negotiated performance certificate shall include a maximum enrollment

number not to exceed 1,800 students across grades 7-12.  However, ISUCCEED will be

permitted to request an increase in this enrollment number through the charter revision

process.  This condition considers that the average enrollment at ISUCCEED across the 5

years preceding the COVID-19 pandemic was 514 students, and that at the highest point

during the pandemic, ISUCCEED’s enrollment peaked at 1,009.  This condition also

considers that ISUCCEED was approved to add 7th and 8th grade in a 2020 performance

certificate amendment.  The purpose of this condition is to ensure budget predictability for

all schools and to ensure that emergency growth decisions are made by the appropriate

entity.  This condition must be met by June 30, 2022.

Page 33



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 5 of 33 

School Overview 

Model: Virtual & Virtual Alternative 

Enrollment Capacity: 1800 

Grades Served: 7-12th Grade

Key Design Elements: 

Provide a virtual setting that allows for flexibility and individualized scheduling: 

• Identify individual student needs and provide the appropriate

interventions and enrichment opportunities for all students

• Provide Advisory Teachers for all students, who will support them

throughout their high school career

• Foster parent involvement through a variety of opportunities to serve the

school and its students

• Provide extra-curricular activities and offer opportunities for students to

participate in non-academic endeavors

• Equip students with 21st Century Learning Skills and foster a

technologically literate approach to learning that is both engaging and

practical for use in the school setting as well as the real world

Page 34



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 6 of 33 

2023 DEMOGRAPHIC SUMMARY: 

 

 

24% 23%

16% 15%

8%
12%

34%

28%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Non-White Comparison

District (Non-

White)

Hispanic Comparison

District

(Hispanic)

Students

w/Disabilities

Comparison

District

(Students

w/Disabilities)

Economically

Disadvantaged

Students

Comparison

District

(Economically

Disadvantaged

Students)

iSucceed Virtual High School

30% 30%

22% 22%

16% 14%

43% 42%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Non-White Comparison

District (Non-

White)

Hispanic Comparison

District

(Hispanic)

Students

w/Disabilities

Comparison

District

(Students

w/Disabilities)

Economically

Disadvantaged

Students

Comparison

District

(Economically

Disadvantaged

Students)

iSucceed Virtual High School-Alternative Program

Page 35



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 7 of 33 

2022-2023 Annual Snapshot 

Schools are encouraged to use this information for strategic planning and to ensure that any 

identified weaknesses are addressed in advance of renewal consideration. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

ACADEMIC OUTCOMES: 

Math Proficiency N_Size Rating Not Available 

ELA Proficiency N_Size Rating Not Available 

College & Career Readiness 

4Yr ACGR 

VIRTUAL ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM ACADEMIC OUTCOMES: 

Math Proficiency N_Size Rating Not Available 

ELA Proficiency N_Size Rating Not Available 

MATH Content Mastery 41% Approaches Standard 

ELA Content Mastery 
49% 

Approaches Standard 

9-11 Progress Towards

Graduation
6% 

Does Not Meet 

Standard 

College & Career Readiness 

5Yr ACGR 
Choose an item. 

College & Career Readiness 

Additional Graduates 
15% Approaches Standard 

Comments:   
College & Career outcomes are unavailable at this time and will be evaluated when the data is 

publicly released. 

Page 36



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 8 of 33 

2022-2023 ANNUAL SNAPSHOT-OPERATIONS 

Schools are encouraged to use this information for strategic planning and to ensure that any 

identified weaknesses are addressed in advance of renewal consideration. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

OPERATIONAL OUTCOMES:  BOARD STEWARDSHIP 

Governance Structure Exceeds Standard 

Governance Oversight Exceeds Standard 

Governance Compliance Exceeds Standard 

OPERATIONAL OUTCOMES: MANAGEMENT 

Student Services Exceeds Standard 

Data Security/Transparency Exceeds Standard 

Facility & Services Exceeds Standard 

Operational Compliance Exceeds Standard 

Comments: 

Page 37



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 9 of 33 

2022-2023 ANNUAL SNAPSHOT-FINANCIAL 

Schools are encouraged to use this information for strategic planning and to ensure that any 

identified weaknesses are addressed in advance of renewal consideration. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

FINANCIAL OUTCOMES: NEAR TERM MEASURES 

Current Ratio 7.25 Exceeds Standard 

Unrestricted Days Cash 420 Exceeds Standard 

Default None Exceeds Standard 

Enrollment Variance 87% Approaches Standard 

FINANCIAL OUTCOMES: SUSTAINABILITY MEASURES 

Total Margin 25.8% Exceeds Standard 

Multi-Year Cash Flow $2,374,579 Exceeds Standard 

Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 
21.2 Exceeds Standard 

Debt Asset Ratio 0.15 Exceeds Standard 

Financial 

Compliance 
Yes Exceeds Standard 

Comments: 

Page 38



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 10 of 33 

Academic Outcomes 

MATH PROFICIENCY 

Why This Matters:  

The IPCSC must determine whether the academic performance at the school represents a favorable 

return on the investment of public dollars.  For context, the IPCSC considers the school’s 

performance in relation to other educational choices available to families.  A school that performs as 

well or better than the average of its comparison group on the statewide mathematics assessment 

(ISAT) meets the IPCSC standard on both the math proficiency and math growth measures.    

If this standard is not yet met, the school should focus its strategic planning on improving 

mathematics achievement outcomes to ensure the school will earn a next operational term.  If the 

standard is met, strategic planning may focus on whatever data points will best establish and 

sustain an exemplary school of the specific model for which the school is chartered.   

Comparison Group: All Virtual Schools in Idaho 

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

MATH 

PROFICIENCY 
N_Size Rating Not Available Due to N_Size 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

N_Size

30%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

iSVHS-Math Proficiency *Comparison Group-Math Proficiency

Most Recent Year: 2022-2023 

Math Proficiency

Page 39

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/financial-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 11 of 33 

Academic Outcomes 

ELA PROFICIENCY 

Why This Matters:    
The IPCSC must determine whether the academic performance at the school represents a favorable 

return on the investment of public dollars.  For context, the IPCSC considers the school’s 

performance in relation to other educational choices available to families.  A school that performs as 

well or better than the average of its comparison group on the statewide ELA assessment (ISAT) 

meets the IPCSC standard on both the ELA proficiency and ELA growth measures.    

If this standard is not yet met, the school should focus its strategic planning on improving these 

outcomes to ensure the school will earn a next operational term.  If the standard is met, strategic 

planning may focus on whatever data points will best establish and sustain an exemplary school of 

the specific model for which the school is chartered.   

 Comparison Group: All Virtual Schools in Idaho 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

ELA 

PROFICIENCY 
N_Size Rating Not Available Due to N_Size 

NA

49%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

iSVHS-ELA Proficiency *Comparison Group-ELA Proficiency

Most Recent Year: 2022-2023

ELA Proficiency

Page 40

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/financial-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 12 of 33 

Academic Outcomes 

COLLEGE & CAREER READINESS 

Why This Matters:    

The IPCSC must determine whether the academic performance at the school represents a 

favorable return on the investment of public dollars.  For context, the IPCSC considers the 

school’s performance in relation to other educational choices available to families.  A school 

with a 4-year graduation rate equal to or greater than the average of its comparison group 

meets the IPCSC standard.     

Comparison Group: All Virtual Schools in Idaho 

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

MEASURE COLLEGE & CAREER 

RATING 
APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

College & 

Career 

Readiness 
Choose an item. Choose an item.

0% 0%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

iSVHS-4 Yr ACGR *Comparison Group-4 Yr

ACGR

Most Recent Year: 2022-2023

College & Career Readiness

If this standard is not 

yet met, the school 

should focus its strategic 

planning on improving 

these outcomes to 

ensure the school will 

earn a next operational 

term.   

If the standard is met, 

strategic planning may 

focus on whatever data 

points will best establish 

and sustain an 

exemplary school of the 

specific model for which 

the school is chartered  

Page 41

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/financial-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 13 of 33 

Historical Performance: Academics 
The charts below provide an overview of a school’s performance throughout their current (5) 

year certificate term. Schools are encouraged to consider how this data might be used to drive 

strategic planning as the school approaches its next renewal decision. 

*College & Career Readiness data & ratings were unavailable for the FY22 school year and

grayed out in the chart below. 

2022

2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

Math Proficiency

A C A DE MI C  R A T I NG| M A T H 

2022

2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

ELA Proficiency

A C A DE MI C  R A T I NG| E L A

2022 2023
Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets Standard

Exceeds Standard

College & Career

A C A DE MI C  R A T I NG| C O L L E G E  &  C A R E E R  4 Y R  A C GR

Page 42



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 14 of 33 

 Academic Outcomes: Virtual Alternative Program 

ELA & MATH PROFICIENCY 

Why This Matters:    
The IPCSC must determine whether the academic performance at the school represents a favorable 

return on the investment of public dollars.  For context, the IPCSC considers the school’s 

performance in relation to other educational choices available to families.  A school that performs as 

well or better than the average of its comparison group on the statewide ELA and Mathematics 

assessments (ISAT) meets the IPCSC standard on both the ELA and Math Proficiency measures.    

If this standard is not yet met for one or both subjects, the school should focus its strategic planning 

on improving these outcomes to ensure the school will earn a next operational term.  If the standard 

is met, strategic planning may focus on whatever data points will best establish and sustain an 

exemplary school of the specific model for which the school is chartered.   

Comparison Group: All Alternative Schools in Idaho 

Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

ELA 

PROFICIENCY 
N_Size Rating Not Available Due to N_Size 

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

MATH 

PROFICIENCY 
N_Size Rating Not Available Due to N_Size 

N_Size

20%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

iSVHS Alt.

Program-Math

Proficiency

*Comparison

District-Math

Proficiency

Most Recent Year: 

2022-2023

Math Proficiency

NA

30%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

iSVHS Alt.

Program-ELA

Proficiency

*Comparison

District-ELA

Proficiency

Most Recent Year: 

2022-2023

ELA Proficiency

Page 43

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/performance-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 15 of 33 

Academic Outcomes: Virtual Alternative Program

ELA & MATH CONTENT MASTERY 

Why This Matters:    

Students enrolled at alternative schools face additional barriers to academic success.  Often, these 

students are behind in grade-level proficiency in both Math and ELA.  This means that the 

traditional academic measures may not accurately reflect whether a school that exclusively serves 

at-risk students is successfully serving the needs of its student population.   

The content mastery measure considers the percentage of students who were continuously enrolled 

at the school for the whole year who earned credit for the equivalent of one school year in Math and 

ELA, regardless of the grade-level of the course taken.  This measure acknowledges that a student 

enrolled in 8th grade, may not perform well on the 8th grade ISAT assessment if his or her skills are 

at the 6th grade level; however, if that student mastered the content (earned full credit) in the next 

course in his/her own academic progression, that success should be noted for the student and the 

school.   

This measure also considered whether students in grades 9-12 are gaining a sufficient level of 

learning in the crucial disciplines of Math and ELA, even though the ISAT no longer applies.   

Comparison Group: All IPCSC Alternative Programs 

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

EASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

ELA 

Content 

Mastery 

Approaches Standard 

The % of continuously enrolled students who have either already 

completed all math graduation requirements for the equivalent of 1Yr of 

instruction in the discipline is below, but no more than 10% below, the 

school's % in the previous year. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

Math 

Content 

Mastery 

Approaches Standard 

The % of continuously enrolled students who have either already 

completed all math graduation requirements for the equivalent of 1Yr of 

instruction in the discipline is below, but no more than 10% below, the 

school's % in the previous year. 

41% 45%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

iSVHS  Alt.

Program

3-YR Ave. All

IPCSC Alts

Math Content Mastery

2022-2023

49% 52%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

iSVHS  Alt.

Program

3-YR Ave. All

IPCSC Alts

ELA Content Mastery

2022-2023

Page 44

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/performance-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 16 of 33 

Academic Outcomes: Virtual Alternative Program

9-12 PROGRESS TOWARD GRADUATION

Why This Matters:    

Students enrolled at alternative schools face additional barriers to academic success.  Often, these 

students change schools frequently and fall behind in credits earned.   As traditional academic 

measures only reflect the school’s success with students who were continuously enrolled for the 

whole school year, alternative measures are necessary to evaluate whether a school is serving all 

students well.   

For students who are at-risk of failing to graduate, it is crucial to ensure that they earn enough 

credit while enrolled at a school to not fall further behind, whether they are enrolled for the whole 

school year or only one grading term.  The 9-12 progress toward graduation measure considers 

whether a student successfully completed at least as many credits as expected during the time, they 

attended the school. 

Comparison Group: All IPCSC Alternative Programs

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE 

TO PANDEMIC 

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

9-12 Progress

Towards

Graduation

Does Not Meet 

Standard 

The % of students who either completed 3 credits for 

every 45 days (if enrolled for at least 45 days, but not 

continuously enrolled), or completed 11.5 credits (if 

continuously enrolled) is more than 10% below the 

school's % in the previous Yr. 

6%

27%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

iSVHS  Alt. Program 3-YR Average All IPCSC Alts

Most Recent Year 2022-2023

9-12 Progress Toward Graduation

Page 45

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/financial-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 17 of 33 

Academic Outcomes: Virtual Alternative Program

COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS 

Why This Matters:    

The IPCSC must determine whether the academic performance at the school represents a 

favorable return on the investment of public dollars.  For context, the IPCSC considers the 

school’s performance in relation to other educational choices available to families.  A school 

with a 5-year graduation rate equal to or greater than the average of its comparison group 

meets the IPCSC standard.     

Comparison Group: All Alternative Schools in Idaho 

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

MEASURE COLLEGE & CAREER 

RATING 
APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

College & 

Career 

Readiness 

Choose an item. Choose an item. 

0% 0%
0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

iSVHS Alt. Program- 5 Yr

ACGR

*Comparison District-5 Yr

ACGR

Most Recent Year: 2022-2023

College & Career Readiness

If this standard is not 

yet met, the school 

should focus its strategic 

planning on improving 

these outcomes to 

ensure the school will 

earn a next operational 

term.   

If the standard is met, 

strategic planning may 

focus on whatever data 

points will best establish 

and sustain an 

exemplary school of the 

specific model for which 

the school is chartered  

Page 46

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/performance-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 18 of 33 

Alternative Program Academic Outcomes 

COLLEGE AND CAREER READINESS (ADDITIONAL GRADUATES) 

Why This Matters:    
4 and 5 Year ACGR measures capture the percentage of students who graduate 4 and 5 years after 

they began 9th grade.  These measures speak to school success only in cases where the school 

retained the student for the entire 4 or 5 years.   At-risk students are a more mobile population and 

generally enroll in several high schools throughout their high school career.  This means that the 

traditional measures do not sufficiently help us understand whether an alternative school is serving 

its student population well.    

The alternative college and career readiness measure allows the IPCSC to consider the percentage of 

students who were in enrolled as 12th grade students and graduated, regardless of when the student 

should have graduated.  As this measure includes students who may be in their 6th or 7th year of high 

school, it helps tell more of the data story for at-risk students and the schools that serve them.     

Comparison Group: All IPCSC Alternative Programs 

*Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each measure is rated.

MEASURE PROFICIENCY RATING APPLICABLE RUBRIC DESCRIPTION 

College & 

Career 

Readiness 

Approaches 

Standard 

The % of not continuously enrolled students who were enrolled for 

at least 45 days and were eligible to graduated in the same 

academic year (plus summer) who graduated is below, but no 

more than 10% below the school's % in the previous Yr. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

15%

31%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

iSVHS  Alt. Program 3-YR Average All IPCSC Alts

Most Recent Year 2022-2023

College and Career Readiness:  Additional 

Graduates

Page 47

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/resources/performance-framework/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 19 of 33 

Historical Performance: Academics Alternative Program 

The charts below provide an overview of a school’s performance throughout their current (5) 

year certificate term. Schools are encouraged to consider how this data might be used to drive 

strategic planning as the school approaches its next renewal decision. 

*Alternative outcome ratings were waived for the FY22 school year and grayed out below.

College & Career Readiness data & ratings were unavailable for the FY22 school year and

grayed out in the chart below. 

Schools will receive ratings for alternative measures once the school has reached 3 years on the 

IPCSC revised framework. 

2022 2022

2023 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

Math ProficiencyELA Proficiency

A C A D E M I C  R A T I N G | M A T H &  

E L A  P R O F I C I E N C Y  

2022 2022

2023 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

Math Mastery ELA  Mastery

A C A D E M I C  R A T I N G | M A T H  &  

E L A  C O N T E N T  M A S T E R Y

2022

2023
Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

9-11 Progress Towards Grad

A C A D E M I C  R A T I N G | 9 - 1 1  

P R O G R E S S  T O W A R D S  

G R A D U A T I O N

2022

2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

College & Career Readiness

A C A D E M I C  R A T I N G |

C O L L E G E  &  C A R E E R  

R E A D I N E S S - 5 Y R  

2022

2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches Standard

Meets Standard

Exceeds Standard

College & Career Readiness-Add. Graduates

A C A D E M I C  R A T I N G |

C O L L E G E  &  C A R E E R  R E A D I N E S S - A D D T ' L  G R A D U A T E S  

Page 48



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 20 of 33 

Operational Outcomes 

BOARD STEWARDSHIP 

Why This Matters:  
At the highest level, the success of a charter school is driven by the ability of its governing board to 

govern effectively.  The measures in this section help identify the strengths and challenges faced by 

the school’s board. *Please see the Performance Framework Rubrics for details regarding how each 

measure is rated. 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 
Governance Structure Measure Data/Evidence Source 

The board bylaws are compliant with ID law. 

Most recently reviewed Bylaws 7/1/2023. 

*Please provide an updated to copy to IPCSC staff if any

amendments have been made since the above review date.

The school’s articles of incorporation are current. Most recently updated on 6/15/2023. 

The board does operate in compliance with its 

bylaws.    
*No instances of non-compliance documented.

Investigations were not conducted into ethical 

behavior or conflict of interest regarding any board 

director this year.   

*No instances of non-compliance documented.

The board did not experience Open Meeting Law 

violations that needed to be cured this year. 
*No instances of non-compliance documented.

Comments/ Context: 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 

Governance Oversight Measure Data/Evidence Source 

The board did review academic data in a timely 

and thorough manner. 

*Annual Desk Audit

No instances of non-compliance documented. 

The board did review financial reports in a timely 

and thorough manner.  

*Annual Desk Audit

No instances of non-compliance documented. 

The board did maintain compliant policies. 
*Annual Desk Audit

No instances of non-compliance documented. 

The board did engage in strategic planning.  
*Annual Desk Audit

No instances of non-compliance documented. 

The board did conduct a compliant evaluation of 

their school leader or management organization. 

*Annual Desk Audit

No instances of non-compliance documented. 

Comments/ Context: 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 

Governance Compliance Measure Data/Evidence Source 

The IPCSC did not issue courtesy letters to the 

school noting compliance concerns this year. 
*No instances of non-compliance documented.

Another investigative body was not notified of 

concerns at this school this year. 
*No instances of non-compliance documented.

Comments/ Context: 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

Page 49

https://chartercommission.idaho.gov/standards-and-outcomes/performance-framework-guidance/


IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 21 of 33 

Operational Outcomes 

MANAGEMENT 

Why This Matters:   

The systems and structures that support school operations are an important part of the school’s 

overall success.   The measures in this section help identify the strengths and challenges that impact 

the school’s day-to-day operations.  

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 
Student Services Data/Evidence Source 

The school’s English Language Learners program is in 

good standing. 
*No instances of non-compliance documented.

The school’s Special Education program is in good 

standing.  
*No instances of non-compliance documented.

The school’s college and career readiness program is in 

good standing. 

Continuous Improvement Plan 2022-2023 

Reviewed on: 11/10/2022 

The school’s Federal Programs is in good standing 
Comments/ Context: 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 
Facility and Services Data/Evidence Source 

The school’s occupancy certificate is current. *No instances of non-compliance

documented. 

Safety inspections and evacuation drills are compliant. Fire Inspection:3/18/2022 

Health Inspection: N/A 

Building Inspection: 4/13/23 

The school does not provide daily transportation for students. *No instances of non-compliance

documented. 

The school does not provide a National School Lunch Program. *No instances of non-compliance

documented. 
Comments/ Context: 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE 

TO PANDEMIC 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 
Data Security and Information Transparency Data/Evidence Source 

The school’s website is compliant and updated appropriately. *No instances of non-compliance

documented. 

The school did not experience issues involving data security this 

year.   

*No instances of non-compliance

documented. 

The school did not experience compliance issues with public 

records requests. 

*No instances of non-compliance

documented. 
Comments/ Context: 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 
Operational Compliance Data/Evidence Source 

Required reports were submitted accurately and on time. *No instances of non-compliance documented.

The enrollment process is compliant. *No instances of non-compliance documented.

The teachers are not properly credentialed. *No instances of non-compliance documented.

Corrective action plans were not issued by the SDE this year. *No instances of non-compliance documented.

Comments/ Context:  SDE reporting identified iSVHS has personnel with insufficient teaching credentials. 

Please resolve with the SDE. 

Page 50



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 22 of 33 

Historical Performance: Board Stewardship Measures 

The charts below provide an overview of a school’s performance throughout their current (5) 

year certificate term. Schools are encouraged to consider how this data might be used to drive 

strategic planning as the school approaches its next renewal decision. 

 

2022 2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets Standard

Exceeds Standard

GOV E R NA N C E  ST R UC T UR E  

2022 2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets Standard

Exceeds Standard

GOV E R NA N C E  C OMP L I A NC E

2022 2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets Standard

Exceeds Standard

GOV E R NA N C E  OV E R SI G H T  

Page 51



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 23 of 33 

Historical Performance: Management Measures 

The charts below provide an overview of a school’s performance throughout their current (5) 

year certificate term. Schools are encouraged to consider how this data might be used to drive 

strategic planning as the school approaches its next renewal decision. 

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approache

s 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

S T U D E N T  S E R V I C E S  

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

D A T A  S E C U R I T Y  &  

I N F O R M A T I O N  

T R A N S P A R E N C Y

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

O P E R A T I O N A L  

C O M P L I A N C E

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

F A C I L I T Y  S E R V I C E S

Page 52



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 24 of 33 

Financial Outcomes 

NEAR TERM MEASURES 

These measures evaluate whether a school is likely to meet its financial obligations in the next year.  

Data sources include but are not limited to the school’s fiscal audit, state agency reporting, and 

school reporting requirements. 

Current Ratio

The school has a current ratio of 

more than 1.5. 
Current Ratio: 7.25 Exceeds Standard 

Why This Matters: 

Current Ratio is a comparison of a 

school’s financial obligations due within 

one year (current liabilities) to the cash 

and investments held by the school 

(current assets).  

A school with more assets than liabilities 

(a Current Ratio greater than 1.0) would 

be able to meet its financial obligations 

for the next year without relying on 

future revenue.   

A school with more liabilities than assets 

(a Current Ratio of less than 1.0) is dependent on revenue it has not yet received to meet 

existing financial obligations.  

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

$1,478,1

48

$10,713,

952

Current Liabilities Current Assets

Page 53



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 25 of 33 

Unrestricted Days Cash  

Why this Matters: 

This measure estimates a school’s 

average daily cost of operations and 

considers the number of days a school 

could operate using only its available 

cash and investments.  

A school with at least 60 days cash on 

hand would be able to meet its 

immediate financial obligations with 

available cash, buying the time it might 

take to access other current assets. Occasionally, a planned purchase may decrease this 

number temporarily.  In those cases, 30-60 days cash on hand with an upward trend is 

acceptable. A school with less than 15 days cash on hand is in financial distress and is at 

risk of automatic closure.  

Default
The school has met all financial obligations for 

at least 3 consecutive years. Exceeds Standard 

Why this Matters: 

This measure identifies whether a school has defaulted on any of its financial obligations.  

Default can mean many things.  Examples of default include: paying bills late, failing to 

make payroll, or inaccurately filing reports required for funding. Default can also include a 

failure to meet any additional requirements of long-term debt as established by the lender 

(such as meeting a specific enrollment target or maintaining a greater amount of cash on 

hand than the IPCSC requires).   

Any act of default can result in disruption of services, loans being called due, or funding 

that is inaccurate or withheld.    

The school has more than 60 

days cash on hand.  
420 Days Exceeds Standard 

Comments/Context: 

No instances of non-compliance documented. 

324 316 303
341

420

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

# Days Unrestricted Cash 

On Hand

Page 54



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 26 of 33 

Enrollment Variance  

The school achieved and sustained 

less than 90% of its projected 

enrollment during the most 

recently completed school year, but 

provided a mid-year amended 

budget evidencing a break-even 

financial plan. 

Enrollment Variance: 

87% 
Approaches Standard 

Why this Matters: 

The Enrollment Variance 

measure considers what 

percentage of a school’s projected 

enrollment was achieved.  As the 

majority of a public school’s 

funding is generated by student 

enrollment, this measure reflects 

a school’s ability to execute its 

budget to plan.  

A school that achieves at least 

95% of its projected enrollment 

will likely experience few bumps 

and may make minor adjustments.  A school that achieves less than 95% of projected 

enrollment is likely to face budget challenges requiring more significant budget 

amendments and may be in financial distress. 

996

864

Enrollment Variance

Projected Enrollment Mid-Term ADA

Page 55



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT     iSucceed Virtual High School Page 27 of 33 

Financial Outcomes 

SUSTAINABILITY MEASURES 

These measures evaluate whether a school is likely to meet its financial obligations 

in the next year.  Data sources include but are not limited to the school’s fiscal 

audit, state agency reporting, and school reporting requirements. 

Total Margin 

The school has maintained a positive total 

margin for at least 3 consecutive years. 

CY Total Margin: 25.8% 

3-Year Aggregated:

22.6% 

Exceeds 

Standard 

Why this Matters: 

The Total Margin compares a school’s total revenue to its net income.  Specifically, this measure 

identifies what percentage of a school’s total revenue in a given year was not expended during that 

year.  A school with a positive total margin spent less than it brought in.  That is, the school is living 

within its means and can plan for future purchases and investments.    

 An occasional negative total margin may indicate that a planned or necessary purchase has taken 

place.  This is not necessarily a negative indicator.  However, if the Total Margin is chronically 

negative or severe decreases appear, the school may be in financial distress. Aggregating this margin 

over three years helps to identify these long-term trends. 

RATING 

LEGEND 

DOES NOT MEET 

STANDARD 

APPROACHES 

STANDARD 

MEETS 

STANDARD 

EXCEEDS 

STANDARD 

NOT RATED DUE TO 

PANDEMIC 

Comments/Context: 
*For the purposes of this calculation, pension liability is excluded from the school’s net income.

$9,902,475

$24,872,608

$2,553,860

$5,619,770

Current Year 3-Year Aggregated

Total Margin

Total Revenue

Net Income

Page 56



 IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT iSucceed Virtual High School Page 28 of 33 

Cash Flow 

The school's multi-year 

cumulative cash flow has been 

positive and the most recent 

year's cash flow has been 

positive for at least 3 

consecutive years. 

Most Recent Year:  

$3,529,755 

Previous Year: $1,155,176 

Multi-Year: $2,374,579 

Exceeds Standard 

Why this Matters:  

The Cash Flow measure considers the change in a school’s cash balance over time.  A school 

with a positive cash flow is increasing its reserves and is likely able to fund future projects 

and purchases.   

A school with a negative cash flow is using its existing reserves to fund general operations 

and is not likely to have the financial flexibility to fund future plans.     

A multi-year cumulative cash flow helps to identify long-term trends. 

$5,627,387

$4,472,211 $4,472,211

$8,001,966

$5,627,387

$8,001,966

Most Recent Year Previous Year Multi-Year Cumulative

Cash Flow

FY23FY23 FY22FY22 FY21 FY21

FY18

Page 57



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT           iSucceed Virtual High School Page 29 of 33 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

The school's debt service 

coverage ratio is 1.5 or greater. 

Debt Service Coverage 

Ratio: 21.2  
Exceeds Standard 

Why this Matters: 

This measure evaluates a school’s 

ability to make payments on debt due 

in a given year using only that year’s 

income. This helps determine whether 

a school has more debt than it can 

manage.   

A school with more Operating Income 

than Debt Service (a Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio greater than 1) can meet the financial obligations of their debt.  A school 

with more Debt Service than Operating Income (a ratio of less than 1) is reliant on either 

reserves or revenues anticipated in future years to meet its debt obligations.   

Debt to Asset Ratio 

The school has maintained a debt to 

asset ratio less than .9 for at least 3 

consecutive years. 

Debt/Asset Ratio: 

0.15  
Exceeds Standard 

Why This Matters: 

The Debt to Asset Ratio compares a 

school’s total liabilities to its total 

assets. This helps determine whether 

a school would be able to meet both its 

short and long-term financial 

obligations. 

A school whose total liabilities are 

90% or less of its Total Assets is likely to be able to repay all short-term debts and still 

manage to set its long-term affairs in order in a worst-case scenario.  A school with more 

liabilities than assets would not be able to meet all its financial obligations in a worst-case 

scenario. Note: for the purposes of this measure, pension liability is excluded from the 

school’s total liabilities. 

$2,680,082

$126,222

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Operating Income Debt Service

$1,706,160

$11,009,091

Debt to Asset Ratio

Total Liabilities Total Assets

Page 58



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT   iSucceed Virtual High School Page 30 of 33 

Financial Compliance 

Standard Rating: Exceeds Standard 

Financial Operations Data and/or Evidence Source 

The school’s finances are managed in 

compliance with GAAP. 
Financial Audit: 10/23/23 

Expenditures and contracts are posted online 

appropriately.  
School’s Expenditure Page 

The school maintains compliant internal 

controls.  
Financial Audit: 10/23/23 

The school is not operating under a Notification 

of Fiscal Concern. 

*No instances of non-compliances

documented. 

The school is not operating under a Notification 

of Possible or Imminent Closure.   
*No instances of non-compliances

documented. 

Page 59



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT   iSucceed Virtual High School Page 31 of 33 

Historical Performance: Financial 

The charts below provide an overview of a school’s performance throughout their current (5) 

year certificate term. Schools are encouraged to consider how this data might be used to drive 

strategic planning as the school approaches its next renewal decision.  

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

C U R R E N T  R A T I O

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

D E F A U L T

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

U N R E S T R I C T E D  D A Y S  

C A S H

2022

2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

E N R O L L M E N T  V A R I A N C E

Page 60



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT   iSucceed Virtual High School Page 32 of 33 

Historical Performance: Financial 

The charts below provide an overview of a school’s performance throughout their current (5) 

year certificate term. Schools are encouraged to consider how this data might be used to drive 

strategic planning as the school approaches its next renewal decision.  

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approache

s Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

T O T A L  M A R G I N

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

C A S H  F L O W

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approache

s 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

D E B T  S E R V I C E  C O V E R A G E  

R A T I O

2022 2023

Does Not 

Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets 

Standard

Exceeds 

Standard

D E B T  T O  A S S E T  R A T I O

2022 2023

Does Not Meet 

Standard

Approaches 

Standard

Meets Standard

Exceeds Standard

F I N A N C I A L  C O M P L I A N C E

Page 61



IPCSC Annual Report 2023 DRAFT   iSucceed Virtual High School Page 33 of 33 

The 2022-2023 Annual Report has been prepared by the 

Idaho Public Charter School Commission staff. 

If you have any questions or comments, please contact 

the IPCSC. 

514 W. Jefferson, Suite 303 

Boise, ID 83720 

208-332-1561

pcsc@osbe.idaho.gov 

Page 62

mailto:pcsc@osbe.idaho.gov


V. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENT

BACKGROUND 

North Star Charter School is requesting an amendment to their 2023 – 2028 
Performance Certificate to remove a key design element.  This change is considered 
a “major amendment” and as such, requires IPCSC approval. 

DISCUSSION 

The specific request to amend the current Performance Certificate of North Star 
Charter School is to remove Section 2(c) pertaining to the school’s key design 
element of offering an International Baccalaureate Diploma Program.  

Please see the attached performance certificate (highlight section on Page 65). 

SPEAKERS 

Marcus Young, Board Chair 
Shay Davis, Principal 
Andy Horning, Head of School 

IMPACT 

If the IPCSC approves the amendment, the IPCSC will have 30 days in which to 
execute an amendment to the performance certificate.  

COMMISSION ACTION 

1. A motion to approve the amendment to remove language found in Section 2(c)
pertaining North Star Charter School’s International Baccalaureate Diploma
Program; OR

2. A motion to deny the amendment proposal for North Star Charter School’s
International Baccalaureate Diploma Program.

Page 63



CHARTER SCHOOL PERFORMANCE CERTIFICATE 

This Performance Certificate (“Certificate”) is executed on June 8, 2023, by and between the Idaho Public 
Charter School Commission (the “Authorizer”) and North Star Charter School, Inc. (the “Charter 
Holder”) for the purpose of operating North Star Charter School (the “School”), an independent public 
school organized as an Idaho nonprofit corporation and established under the Public Charter Schools Act 
of 1998, Idaho Code section 33-5201 et seq., as amended (the “Charter Schools Act”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, North Star Charter School, Inc. is a non-profit entity incorporated with a board of 
directors; and 

WHEREAS, on April 22, 2002, Joint School District No. 2, the Authorizer approved a charter 
petition for the establishment of the School; and 

WHEREAS, the School began operations in the year 2003; and 

WHEREAS, the Charter Schools Law was amended effective as of July 1, 2013 to require all 
public charter schools approved prior to July 1, 2013 to execute performance certificates with 
their authorizers no later than July 1, 2014; 

WHEREAS, on October 9, 2014, the Authorizer, Joint School District No. 2, and the 
School agreed to a transfer of the School’s performance certificate and charter to the Authorizer; 

WHEREAS, the School’s charter was renewed on March 1, 2018, for a five-year term of operations, 

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2023, the Authorizer renewed the School’s charter for a subsequent 
five-year term of operations to begin July 1, 2023 and end on June 30, 2028. 

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual understandings 
contained herein, the Authorizer and North Star Charter School, Inc. agree as follows: 

SECTION 1: TERMS OF AUTHORIZATION 

A. Establishment of School. The Charter Holder is hereby authorized to implement at the School
the program described in the Charter, attached to this Certificate as Appendix C and incorporated
herein by this reference. Any significant changes to any section of the Charter, including the
educational program, facilities plan, financial plan, or the management plan, during the School’s
pre-operational period or first operational term shall be treated as an amendment in accordance
with the Authorizer’s policy.

B. Term of Agreement. The School’s operational term shall be from July 1, 2023 and end on June
30, 2028. Subsequent terms of operation may be issued by the Authorizer in accordance with

Page 64



Idaho Code and Authorizer policy. 

SECTION 2: EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

A. School Mission. The mission of the School is as follows: North Star Charter School provides
students a world-class education characterized by a safe, supportive and structured learning
climate that encourages high academic achievement, intellectual confidence, leadership and
virtuous citizenship.

B. Grades Served. The School may serve students in grades Kindergarten through 12.
C. Design Elements. The School shall implement and maintain the following essential design

elements of its educational program:
• The School will provide each student a rigorous world-class educational program,

encouraging collaborative learning, academic achievement, intellectual confidence and
virtuous leadership. This can be measured via observation and lesson plans.

• Through the Character Leadership Program, the School will strive to remove fear, threat
and intimidation from the classroom, creating the environment in which learning can best
take place. This can be measured via observation and policy review.

• The School will advocate for all students’ social, emotional, and physical wellbeing. This
can be measured via observation.

• A Business/Economics emphasis will be woven throughout the curriculum to teach the
influences of business and economic decisions in our lives, communities and world. This
can be measured via observation and curriculum.

• The School will implement the International Baccalaureate (IB) Diploma Program for
grades 11-12, providing students with a curriculum that is intellectually challenging and
utilizes rigorous assessments to prepare students for the demands of college and
employment. This can be measured via observation, data analysis and policy review.

• In addition to core subject matter, the school will support the development of the whole
child by providing opportunities in music, art, inventiveness, and cultural awareness. This
can be measured via observation and curriculum.

D. Standardized Testing. Students of the School shall be tested with the same standardized tests as
other Idaho public school students.

E. Accreditation. The School shall be accredited as provided by rule of the State Board of
Education. The School shall be accredited or appropriately credentialed by Cognia. All reports
issued to the School from the accrediting agency shall be submitted to the Authorizer within five
days of receipt.

SECTION 3: SCHOOL GOVERNANCE 

A. Governing Board. The School shall be governed by a non-profit board of directors (the “Board”)
incorporated by the Charter Holder. The Board shall serve as public agents authorized by the
Authorizer, in a manner that is consistent with the terms of this Certificate, so long as such
provisions are in accordance with state and federal laws, rules and regulations. The Board shall
have final authority with respect to the School’s operation, and shall have the responsibility of

Page 65



overseeing academic achievement, financial stability, and operational management of the School. 
The Charter Holder shall also be responsible for maintaining and enforcing a compliant Board 
and providing overall Board stewardship for the School. 

B. Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. The articles of incorporation and bylaws of the Charter
Holder shall provide for governance of the operation of the School as a nonprofit corporation and
a public charter school, and shall at all times be consistent with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and this Certificate. The Charter Holder shall notify the Authorizer of any
modification to the articles of incorporation or bylaws within five business days of approval by
the Charter Holder.

C. Charter Board Composition. The composition of the Board shall at all times be determined by
and consistent with the articles of incorporation and bylaws, and all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, and policies. The Charter Holder shall notify the Authorizer of any changes to its
composition and provide an amended School Leadership Roster within five business days of it
taking effect.

SECTION 4: AUTHORIZER ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Oversight Allowing Autonomy. The Authorizer’s role shall be to evaluate the School’s
performance outcomes according to this Certificate and the Performance Framework, and shall be
to provide compliance oversight. The Authorizer shall comply with the provisions of the Charter
Schools Act and the terms of this Certificate in a manner that does not unduly inhibit the
autonomy of the School.

B. Charter School Performance Framework. The Charter School Performance Framework
(“Performance Framework”) is attached and incorporated into this agreement as Appendix A.
The Performance Framework shall be used to annually evaluate the School’s academic
achievement, Board stewardship, operational management, and financial stability. The specific
terms of the Performance Framework are determined by the Authorizer and shall be binding on
the School.

C. Separate Academic Evaluations. The academic performance outcomes of the K-12 on-site
program operated by the School shall be aggregated across all grades for reportability.

D. Identified Comparison Group. For purposes of evaluating the School against the metrics and
measures established in the Performance Framework, the School’s comparison group shall be
identified as described below and shall be established for the length of the Certificate term.
Joint School District No. 2 (002).

E. Authorizer to Monitor School Performance. The Authorizer shall monitor and report on the
School’s progress in relation to the indicators, measures, metrics, and targets set out in the
Performance Framework. A formal report of the School’s academic, financial, and operational
performance (“Performance Report”) shall be provided to the school and the public by the
Authorizer annually. Data necessary to conduct this evaluation will be collected throughout the
year. Additional reviews may be necessary if compliance concerns arise.

F. School Performance. The School shall meet standard on all measures of the Performance
Framework. The Authorizer shall renew any charter in which the School met all the terms of its
Certificate, including all appendices, at the time of renewal.

Page 66



G. Performance Framework as Basis for Renewal of Charter. The School’s performance in
relation to the Performance Framework shall provide the basis upon which the Authorizer shall
decide whether to renew the School’s Charter at the end of the Certificate term.

H. Required Reports. The School shall prepare and submit reports as required by the Authorizer’s
policy.

I. Authorizer’s Right to Review. The Authorizer maintains the right to request and review
additional documentation if such becomes necessary in the course of regular oversight duties or to
investigate the validity of a compliance concern. The Authorizer shall conduct its reviews in a
manner that does not unduly inhibit the autonomy granted to the School.

J. Site Visits. The Authorizer may conduct site visits in accordance with the Authorizer’s policy.
Reports from any site visit shall be made available to the School and shall be included in the
School’s annual Performance Report.

SECTION 5: SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

A. In General. The School and the Charter Holder shall operate at all times in accordance with all
federal and state laws, rules, regulations, local ordinances, and Authorizer policies applicable to
public charter schools.

B. Maximum Enrollment. The maximum number of students who may be enrolled in the school
shall be 1020 students.

C. Equitable Enrollment Procedures. The School shall make student recruitment, admissions,
enrollment, and retention decisions in a nondiscriminatory manner and without regard to race,
color, creed, national origin, sex, marital status, religion, ancestry, disability or need for special
education services. In no event may the School limit admission based on race, ethnicity, national
origin, disability, gender, income level, athletic ability, or proficiency in the English language. If
there are more applications to enroll in the School than there are spaces available, the School
shall select students to attend using a random selection process that shall be publicly noticed and
open to the public.

i. Calendar. The School shall operate on a traditional nine-month calendar in which the
last day of the regular term shall fall on or before June 30

ii. The School will not offer a summer school session for the purpose of acceleration and/or
credit recovery.

D. School Facilities. The School shall operate at the following location(s): 839 N Linder Road,
Eagle, Idaho, 83616. The School shall provide the Authorizer with facilities documentation,
including occupancy permits, fire marshal reports, building inspection reports, and health
department reports for any facility newly occupied by the School, and any remodeling or
construction project for which such documentation is necessary in accordance with Authorizer
policy and in accordance with law, rule, regulations, and authorizer policy.

E. Attendance Area. The School’s primary attendance area shall be used for the purposes of
determining applicability of this enrollment preference category.
The School's primary attendance area is as follows: East of Can-Ada Rd, South of Beacon
Light to include Lanktree Gulch to High Country to Deep Canyon, West of Highway 55
to Eagle Rd, North of Cherry Lane.

Page 67



F. Staff. Instructional staff shall be certified as provided by rule of the State Board of Education.
All full-time staff members of the School shall be covered by the Public Employee Retirement
System of Idaho, federal social security, unemployment insurance, worker’s compensation
insurance, and health insurance.

G. Alignment with All Applicable Law. The School shall comply with all applicable federal and
state laws, rules, and regulations. In the event any such laws, rules, or regulations are amended,
the School shall be bound by any such amendment upon the effective date of said amendment.

SECTION 6: SCHOOL FINANCE 

A. General. The School shall comply with all applicable financial and budget laws, rules,
regulations, and financial reporting requirements, as well as the requirements contained in the
School’s Performance Framework.

B. Financial Controls. At all times, the Charter Holder shall ensure that the School maintains
appropriate governance, managerial procedures, and financial controls, which shall include, but
not be limited to: (1) commonly accepted accounting practices and the capacity to implement
them; (2) a checking account; (3) adequate payroll procedures; (4) procedures for the creation and
review of monthly and quarterly financial reports, which procedures shall specifically identify the
individual who will be responsible for preparing such financial reports in the following fiscal
year; (5) internal control procedures for cash receipts, cash disbursements and purchases; and (6)
maintenance of asset registers and financial procedures for grants, all in accordance with state and
federal laws, rules, regulations, and Authorizer policy.

C. Financial Audit. The School shall submit audited financial statements from an independent
auditor to the Authorizer no later than November 1 of each year.

D. Annual Budgets. The School shall adopt a budget for each fiscal year, prior to the beginning of
the fiscal year. The budget shall be in the Idaho Financial Accounting Reporting Management
Systems (IFARMS) format or any other format as may be reasonably requested by the
Authorizer.

SECTION 7: TERMINATION, NON-RENEWAL AND REVOCATION 

A. Relinquishment. Should the Charter Holder choose to relinquish its Charter before the expiration
of this Certificate, it may do so upon written notice to the Authorizer. In such a case, the
Authorizer’s closure protocol shall begin immediately following written notification.

B. Nonrenewal. The Authorizer may non-renew the Charter at the expiration of the Certificate if the
School failed to meet one or more of the terms of its Certificate, including the Performance
Framework. The Charter Holder may appeal a decision to non-renew directly to the State Board
of Education.

C. Revocation. The School’s Charter may be revoked as provided by Idaho Code section 33-5209C.
In such an event, the Authorizer shall consider whether to revoke the School’s Charter at its next
regularly scheduled meeting. The decision shall be made at that time. The Charter Holder may
appeal a decision to revoke directly to the State Board of Education.

D. Closure. The Authorizer’s closure protocol shall begin immediately after a decision to relinquish
is made by the Charter Holder, or a decision to revoke or non-renew or is made by the Authorizer.

Page 68



Closure protocol shall begin regardless of whether the Charter Holder appeals the decision. In the 
event that closure protocol begins, the School shall cease operations no later than the following 
June 30. Closure protocol shall only cease if the State Board of Education overturns the 
Authorizer’s decision. 

SECTION 8: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. No Employee or Agency Relationship. None of the provisions of this Certificate will be
construed to create a relationship of agency, representation, joint venture, partnership, ownership,
or employment between the Authorizer and the School.

B. Additional Services. Except as may be expressly provided in this Certificate, as set forth in any
subsequent written agreement between the School and the Authorizer, or as may be required by
law, neither the School nor the Authorizer shall be entitled to the use of or access to the services,
supplies, or facilities of the other.

C. No Third-Party Beneficiary. This Certificate shall not create any rights in any third parties, nor
shall any third party be entitled to enforce any rights or obligations that may be possessed by
either party to this Certificate.

D. Amendment. This Certificate may be amended by agreement between the School and the
Authorizer in accordance with Authorizer policy. All amendments must be in writing and signed
by the School and the Authorizer.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Authorizer and the Charter Holder have executed this Performance 
Certificate to be effective June 8, 2023. 

Alan L Reed Jun 14, 2023 
Alan L Reed (Jun 14, 2023 16:09 MDT) 

Chairman 
Idaho Public Charter School Commission 

R. Marcus Young Jun 14, 2023
R. Marcus Young (Jun 14, 2023 14:43 MDT) 

Chairman 
North Star Charter School, Inc. Governing Board 

Page 69

https://secure.na4.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA0ntQzDJfnRIGrOxINAGMfiNCPs8v4Uzh
https://secure.na4.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA0ntQzDJfnRIGrOxINAGMfiNCPs8v4Uzh
https://secure.na4.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA0ntQzDJfnRIGrOxINAGMfiNCPs8v4Uzh
https://secure.na4.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA0ntQzDJfnRIGrOxINAGMfiNCPs8v4Uzh


VI. CONSIDERATION OF NEW CHARTER SCHOOL PETITION

SUBJECT 
New Charter School Petition for North Idaho Classical Academy 

BACKGROUND 
As a state of Idaho “Authorized Chartering Entity”, The IPCSC may approve, 
conditionally approve, or deny new charter school petitions. Petitions are 
evaluated as defined in Idaho Code and Administrative Rule.   

The new charter school petition for Gem Prep Ammon was initially received on 
September 14, 2023.  IPCSC Staff collaborated with the school to provide 
feedback and develop the final petition and evaluation on December 5, 2023.    

DISCUSSION 
Please see the Petition Evaluation Report included in these materials for a full 
evaluation of the petition with respect to the IPCSC’s established Standard of 
Quality.   

SPEAKERS 
Dr. Jacob Francom – Principal, North Idaho Classical Academy 
Marvin Lasnick – Board Chair 
Ruth David – Board member 
Stacy Saylor – Board member 
John Bassetti – Board member 

IMPACT 
If the IPCSC approves the petition, the IPCSC will have 75 days in which to 
execute a performance certificate with the school’s governing board and the 
school will begin serving students in the fall of 2025.  

COMMISSION ACTION 

1. A motion to approve the new charter school petition for North Idaho
Classical Academy as presented; OR

2. A motion to approve the new charter school petition for North Idaho
Classical Academy with the following conditions: [state conditions and due
dates]; OR

3. A motion to deny the new charter school petition for North Idaho Classical
Academy on the following grounds: [state reasons for denial].

Page 70



December 7th, 2023 

Idaho Public Charter School Commission 

514 W. Jefferson Street, Suite 303 

Boise, Idaho 83702 

Phone: (208)332-1561 

pcsc@osbe.idaho.gov 

Alan Reed, Chairman 

Alex J. Adams, Interim Director 

Initial Petition Evaluation Report 

North Idaho Classical Academy 

December 7th, 2023 

Page 71

mailto:pcsc@osbe.idaho.gov


 Petition Evaluation Report  2 

Petition Review Summary 

North Idaho Classical Academy is a proposed American classical education school 

located outside Bonners Ferry, Idaho. The curriculum is well-designed, and blends 

American values and traditional classical education elements (e.g., Latin, studying 

literary classics, etc.). The school plans on enrolling 210 students in grades K-6 in the 

first year of operations, and expand to 381 students in grades K-12 in year seven of 

operations.  This proposed school is a replication of the Treasure Valley Classical 

Academy (TVCA) located in Fruitland, ID, currently in its fourth year of operations and 

up for renewal in 2024.  TVCA is in good standing on all IPCSC framework measures.  

The school’s administrator is currently serving as a BLUUM fellow, providing an 

opportunity to have a solid, stable leader in place prior to the proposed opening date of 

2025. Board directors appear to have varied backgrounds, and receive support from 

several advisors, including Hillsdale College. 

The school expects to receive grants from JKAF (administered and approved via Bluum) 

in order to complete school funding and start-up costs. Documentation of financial 

agreements are not included in the final petition. 

The petition does not currently meet the following Standards of Quality as detailed 

herein, and revisions should prioritize these: Section II.1.B; II.1.C; II.4.C 

Summary of Section Ratings 

Section 1: Educational Program  Section 2: Financial & Facilities Plan 

 

Meets Standard Approaches Standard 

Section 3: Board Capacity and 

Governance Structure  

Section 4: Student Demand & 

Primary Attendance Area  

Meets Standard Meets Standard 

Section 5: School Leadership and 

Management  

Section 6: Virtual Schools  

Meets Standard Not Applicable 

Page 72



 Petition Evaluation Report  3 

 Section I:  Educational Program: 
Standard Rating: Meets Standard 

Comments 

The petition proposes an American classical education model. The school is a Hillsdale 

K-12 Candidate Member School, which allows the school to use the Hillsdale curriculum

free of cost through the partnership. The school will recruit teachers via a national

recruitment network.

The curriculum emphasizes virtuous living, traditional learning, and civic 

responsibility. The curriculum is informed by the Core Knowledge Sequence, Singapore 

Mathematics, and the Well-Ordered language curriculum, among others. Students will 

also learn Latin in grades six through nine, and advanced Latin in grades ten through 

twelve. 

Strengths: 

• The curriculum is established and supported by the developing institution.

Concerns: 

• No concerns with this section.

Page 73



 Petition Evaluation Report  4 

Section II:  Financial and Facilities Plan 

Comments 

The petition proposes making updates to an existing facility, with a tentative purchase 

and sale agreement in place.  The school has secured several letters of interest from 

funding sources, and an agreement with BLUUM to provide back-office services during 

the initial years of the service agreement.  

Strengths: 

• A services agreement from BLUUM is included in the petition. The school has a plan

for these services to phase out over the course of the initial performance certificate.

• The school has received donations from four unnamed donors totaling $1.24 million

dollars (page 104).

Concerns: 

• Financial documents and letters of interest are not executed.  Understanding that

the school needs to have their charter authorized prior to executing financial

documents, the school may be requested to provide executed service and purchase

agreements and relative financing and charitable agreements to the Commission

before the charter’s authorized start date.

• The petition presents two facility options; however, they are for the same facility

site, with the second option providing a more scaled-down option by reducing the use

and construction of the existing school buildings. This maybe a particular risk as the

proposed contract contains language that provides an “out-clause” (page 151) which

may require a separate site if terms cannot be met.

Standard Rating: Approaches Standard 

Page 74



 Petition Evaluation Report  5 

Section III:  Board Capacity and Governance Structure 

Comments 

The board is comprised of five members, including a software company owner/executive 

at Kapex Technology, CEO of BLUUM, a former registered nurse (St. Luke’s), a retired 

bank executive and home renovation owner/operator at The Saylor Corp., and an 

Information Technology auditor at Stratagroup.  

The board is part of a network, American Classical Schools of Idaho (ACSI). ACSI 

manages two schools in the IPCSC portfolio, Treasure Valley Classical Academy (TVCA) 

and Idaho Novus Classical Academy (INCA). 

The board also has two advisors: Major General Mark Dillon, with military and 

education consulting background, and Dr. Jon Fennell, chairman of the Education 

Department at Hillsdale College.

Strengths: 

• The board currently oversees two charter schools in the IPCSC portfolio

(Treasure Valley Classical Academy, Idaho Novus Classical Academy).

• The board has a plethora of experience and members possess a wide range of

skills that aid in executing their responsibilities.

Concerns: 

• No concerns with this section.

Standard Rating: Meets Standard 

Page 75



 Petition Evaluation Report  6 

Governance Capacity Interview Summary 

Interview Date: December 5th, 2023 

Present:  Marvin Lasnick, Ruth David, Stacy Saylor, John Bessetti 

IPCSC Staff Present:  Jared Dawson, Mel Rivera, Jacob Smith 

Personal introductions – Please take a moment to introduce yourself and 

share a little about the role you’ve played in the petition process so far. 

1. How do you define what a successful charter school looks like?

Finding an excellent school leader is important. The location and layout of an area is

important as well. The curriculum is also important, and increased experience

provides opportunities for financing that hadn’t been seen in the past. This also

helps, as teachers are coming to them looking for positions.

2. What are some of your biggest lessons learned and changes made since

your first school began operations? What challenges remain to be

addressed?

Have facilities identified up front, in order to ensure that all planned spaces are

available and able to acquire. Two board members visited the facility a couple of

weeks ago, the current owner of the facility is very supportive, and kind of a partner.

The board has developed very supportive partners in this process.

3. What are your plans for recruiting students? What are your thoughts on

recruiting for a school in what might be considered a smaller market area?

Staff do source from other schools, and there is strong recruiting and strong interest.

Apartments built on an adjacent property owned by the seller are available for

teachers moving to the area to help with housing. Relationship with seller is “kind

of” a partnership, nothing written/executed for housing help, etc. Teachers

interested so far mostly seem to have experience with the classical model.

4. What has been or what will be the board’s involvement in negotiating

contracts, like purchasing the property, construction of the buildings,

curriculum purchase, service providers?

ACSI leadership (e.g., Executive Director Lambert) takes the lead on negotiations

and major contracts. He is inclusive on contracts, hands them off with a

recommendation, board talks through and approves contracts. Chair Lasnick is more

involved up front in communication with Executive Director, as progresses will

branch out to more than Chair. Legal counsel is also involved in reviewing contract

language, identifying risk, etc.

Page 76



 Petition Evaluation Report  7 

5. How will you involve the community and also be available for the

community to participate in board meetings?  Will you have board

meetings at the school campus during the year?

There is potential for travel; the model is to have someone local to the community for

network schools, and have someone from local community on board to represent.

Parent/teacher committees with a board liaison are also ways to maintain

availability. The Executive Director has property in the community, and will be

involved in the community in that way as well.

Follow-up question related to facility safety, as facility is spread out, etc. TVCA is

the model.

Follow-up question related to board member on-boarding. The Governance

Committee is working on a packet for board members. Hillsdale provides board

training that new board members are required to attend.

6. Do you have any questions for us?

Questions related to Commission meeting addressed.

Page 77



 Petition Evaluation Report  8 

Section IV:  Student Demand and Primary Attendance Area 

Comments 

The school intends to open in the Fall of 2025, initially serving grades K-6, adding one 

grade level each year to expand to grades K-12 by year seven of operations (the school 

will serve grades K-10 in the final year of the initial performance certificate). The school 

will enroll 210 students in year one, reaching a maximum capacity of 381 students in 

year seven of operations.  

Strengths: 

• The petition presents a plan for growth throughout the life of the initial

performance certificate period.

Concerns: 

• All research indicates that an attrition rate of 3-7% may not be manageable.

The petition states that another school in the network experienced attrition

rates of 8.3% (9th grade) and 7.8% (10th grade). While the school may adjust

its budget to accommodate a higher attrition rate, the lower end of the

attrition rates proposed in the petition may not be realistic.

• The petition states that “there are over 3000 students under 18 years of age

in Boundary County, and there are estimated to be over 5000 students in the

northern part of Bonner County,” according to census.gov (page 106). School-

age children (5-17) on the same site comprise 2336 students in Boundary

County. This may be a more accurate representation of the number of

students available for the initial enrollment.

Standard Rating: Meets Standard 

Page 78



 Petition Evaluation Report  9 

Section V:  School Leadership and Management 

Comments 

The school has identified a founding principal, who is currently a Bluum fellow. Dr. 

Jacob Francom, the founding principal, has experience in both classroom education and 

school administration.  

Strengths: 

• The founding principal has an extensive background in education and

administration.

• The administration is well-connected to the day-to-day operations through

teaching assignments.

Concerns: 

• No concerns with this section.

Standard Rating: Meets Standard 

Page 79



 Petition Evaluation Report  10 

Section VI:  Virtual Schools 

Not Applicable 

Page 80


	Draft Agenda - 12.14.23
	IX. PUBLIC COMMENT

	I. B.  IPCSC Meeting Minutes November 27 2023 draft
	Motions and Notes - Special Meeting 12.7.23
	I. C. 2024 IPCSC Regular Meeting Dates
	IV. Cover Sheet - iSVHS Renewal Conditions
	IV.  iSVHS FY23 Annual Report Alternative-DRAFT
	V. Cover sheet - Consideration of amendment -North Star
	V. North Star Charter School Performance Certificate 2023-2028
	R. Marcus Young  Jun 14, 2023

	VI. Cover Sheet - Consideration of New Petition - NICA
	BACKGROUND

	VI. NICA FINAL Petition Evaluation Report 12.7.2023
	ADPA432.tmp
	VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT

	ADP879A.tmp
	VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT

	ADP57E5.tmp
	VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT

	ADPCE34.tmp
	BACKGROUND

	ADP42EA.tmp
	VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT




